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T WR U INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ' REPORT 

CPAs & Financial Advisors 

Board Members of the 
Louisiana State Board of Cosmetology 
A Discrete Component Unit 
of the State of Louisiana 
I 1622 Sunbelt Court 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 

Report on th e Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activi ties of the Louisiana State Board 
of Cosmetology (Board), a discrete component unit of the State of Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
202 1, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board 's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's R esponsibility for the Fina11cinl Statements 

Management is respons ible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia l statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal contro l relevant to the preparation and fai r presentation of financia l statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statenJents based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing S1andards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial s tatements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disc losures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fa ir presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity 's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes eva luating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
s ignificant accounting estimates made by management, as wel l as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia l 
statements. 

We bel ieve that the aud it evidence we have obtai ned is suffic ient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

527 East Airport Ave., Baton Rouge, LA 70806 225.926. 1 0S0 IVIVIY.lwru.com 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fai rly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities of the Board, as of June 30, 202 1. and the respective changes in 
financial position, and cash nows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Mallers 

Required Supplemenlary Information 

Accounting princ iples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analys is and budgetary comparison infonnation on pages 4-7, the Schedules of the Board's Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Board Contributions, and the Schedule of the Employer's Proportionate 
Share of the Total Collective OPEB Liability on pages 37-42, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such in formation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the bas ic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures 10 the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with aud iting standards generally accepted in 
the United States o f America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic linancial statemen1s. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the in fonnation because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementa,y Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fanning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Board's basic financia l statements. T he schedules of Per Diem Paid to Board Members; Compensation, Benefits. 
and Other Payments to Agency Head; the Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund; and the Annual Fiscal Repon 
on pages 43-54 are presented for purposes of add itiona l analysis and are not a required part of the basic financia l 
statements. 

T he schedules of Per Diem Paid to Board Members; Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency I lead: 
the Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund; and the Annual Fiscal Report are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underly ing accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures appl ied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financia l statements themselves, and other additiona l procedures in accordance wi th auditing standards general ly 
accepted in the United States of Amer ica. In our opinion, the schedu les of Per Diem Paid to Board Members; 
Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head; the Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund; and 
the /\nnual Fiscal Report are fairly stated in all materia l respects in relation 10 the basic financia l statements as a 
who le. 

CPAs & F1n11nc11/ Advisors 
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Other Reporting Required by Government A uditing Standards 

In accordance wi th Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17, 2021, on 
our considerat ion of the Board 's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance wi th 
certain provisions of laws, regu lations, contracts, and grant agreements and other mailers. The purpose of that repon 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to prov ide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
T hat report is an integral part of an aud it perfom1ed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Board's internal control over financial report ing and compliance. 

CPAs & Financial Advisors 
Baton Rouge, Lou isiana 
December 17, 2021 

,., 
T "\AT R U 
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MANAGEMENT' DISCUSSION A D ANALY IS 

The purpose of Management 's Discussion and Ana lysis (MD&A) of the financia l performance of the Louisiana 
State Board of Cosmetology (hereafter referred to as the Board) presents a narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the Board for the year ended June 30, 202 1. This document focuses on the current year's 
activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts in comparison with the prior year's information. Please read 
this document in conjunction with the financial statements of the Board, which begin on page 8. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Board 's net pos1t1on increased by $3 18,857 from a deficit of $3,886,447 in 2020 to a deficit of 
$3,567,590 in 202 1. 

• The Board 's revenues increased to $1,97 1,915 (9.5%) and expenses and transfers increased to $ 1,653,058 
(0.2%). 

• The Board 's liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of 
resources at the close o f the fiscal year by $3 ,567,590, a decrease of 8% from the prior fi sca l year. 

• The Board has no long-term obl igations other than employee-related benefits. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The m1111mum requirements for government entities engaged in business-type activities established by the 
Governmenta l Accounting Standards Board (GASB) are comprised of the following: 

• Management's Discuss ion and Analysis 

• Basic Financial Statements 

• Required Supplementary Information, other than MD&A (RSI) 

This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financia l statements. 

The Board 's activities are reported in a s ingle proprietary fund . A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used 
10 maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objecti ves. The Board, like 
other state and loca l governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compl iance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

The Board 's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conform ity with accoun ting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied 10 governmental units. Under this basis of accounting, 
revenues arc recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recogn ized in the period in which they 
are incurred. 
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Bas ic Financial talemc nls 

The basic financ ial statements present information for the Board as a whole, in a formal designed to make the 
stateme nts easier for the reader 10 understand. The statements in this section include the Statement of Net Position; 
the Statement o f Revenues, Expenses, and C hanges in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows. 

Statement of Net Position - This statement presents the current and long-term portions of assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, the current and long-term portions of liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference 
reported as net pos ition and may provide a useful indicator of whether the financial posi tion of the Board is 
improving or deteriorating. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - This statement presents information showing how 
the Board 's assets changed as a result of current year operations. Regardless of when cash is affected, a ll changes 
in net assets arc reported when the underly ing transactions occur. As a result, there are transactions included that 
w ill not a ffect cash until future fiscal periods. 

Statement of Cash Flows - T his statement presents information showing how the Board's cash changed as a result 
o f current year operations. The cash fl ow statement is prepared using the direct method and includes the 
reconc iliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activit ies (indirect method) as 
required by GASS State ment No. 34. 

Notes to the F ina ncia l Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understand ing of the data provided in the basic 
financial statements. T he index of the notes is found on page 11 with the actual notes beginning immediately 
afterwards . 

Req uired S upplementa l In formation 

Jn addit ion to the basic financ ial statements and accompany ing notes, as a component unit of the Sta te of Louisiana, 
the Board complies with the reporting requirements of the Government Accounting Standards Board. This 
in formation is comprised of the Schedules of the Board 's Proportionate Share of the Net Pens ion Liabil ity, the 
Schedules o f Board Contributions, and the Schedule of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the"Total Collective 
OPEB Liability required by GASB. 

S upplementa ry Informa tio n 

Th is report a lso includes supplementary information that is no t a part o f the bas ic financial statements o r required 
by the GASB. This information is inc luded for addi tiona l analysis and is comprised of the sched ules of Per Diem 
Paid to Board Members; Compensation, Bene fit s, and Other Payments to Agency Head; the Budgetary Comparison 
- Proprietary Fund; and the Ann ual Fiscal Report and are found on pages 45-54. 
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As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board 's financial position. At the end 
of the most recent year, the liabilities of t he Board exceeded its assets by $3,567,590. 

The Board's total assets are composed of $1,963,973 (92%) in cash, $1,045 (less than 1%) in receivables and 
$179,431 (8%) investment in capita l assets (land and buildings and improvements). 

The condensed statements of net position consist of the following a t June 30: 

Comparati ve tatem ent o f Net Po it ion 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Assets: 

Current and Other Assets 

Capita l Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 

L iabi lities: 

Current and Other Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Total Liabilities and Deferred In flows of 

Resources 

Net Position 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Unrest ricted 

Total Net Position 

202 1 2020 

$ 1,965,0 18 $ 
179 43 I 

2, 144 ,449 
1,075,614 

~ J,220,Q~J 

$ 228, I 86 $ 
5,823,092 
6,051 ,278 

736,375 

1,847, 152 
183,038 

2,030, 190 
628,561 

,.~~S.15-1 

213,7 12 
5,611,298 
5,825,0 I 0 

720, 188 

UZ87,6SJ $6,545, IJ.8 

$ 179,43 I $ I 83,038 
{3,747,02 1) (4,069,485) 

$_(~~Q) $(3,886,447) 

Deferred o utflows of resources increased by $477,053, or 71.12%, from 2020. 

Non-Current Liabilities increased by $2 11 ,794, or 3.77%, from 2020. 

The Board's negative unrestricted net pos ition is mainly caused by the following: 

• I\ net pension liability and pens ion related deferred inflows and outflows for the Board 's participation 
in various defined benefit plans of approximate ly $2,646,209. 

• A liability for post-employment benefits other than pension and rela ted inflows and outflows o f 
$2.823,814. 
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A condensed statement of revenues, expenses, a nd changes in net posit ion consist of the fo l lowing for the years 
ended June 30: 

Comparative Statement of C hanges in Revenues, Expenses, and ct Position 
For the Years E nded June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Posi tion 

Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

Revenues increased by $ 171,328 or 9.52%, from 2020. 

Expenses increased by $2,647, or 0.16%, from 2020. 

202 1 
$ 1,971 ,9 15 

1,653,058 

318,857 

2020 
$ 1,800,587 

1,650,411 

150,176 

318,857 150,176 
(3,886,447) (4,036,623) 

$.(J.567,590) $<3,886,447) 

CAP IT AL ASSETS 

At June 30, 2021 the Board had $ 179,43 1 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings, 
improvements, and o ffice furniture and equipment. This amount represents a decrease from depreciat ion o f$3,607, 
or 1.97%, from 2020. Further detai l on capital assets is presented in Note 3 on page 16. 

ECO OMIC FACTORS 

Operating revenues increased by $17 1,328 (or 9.52%). The increase is due to an increase in annual licenses and 
fines and enforcement actions. A II o ther revenues remained relatively consistent compared to the prior year. 

Th is financia l report is designed to provide a general overv iew of the Board 's finances, comply with finance- re lated 
laws and regulations and demonstra te the Board 's commitment to public accountability. Any questions o r requests 
for additional in forma tion can be obtained by contacting Mr. Steve Young, Executive Director, at I 1622 Sunbelt 
Court, Baton Rouge, LA or (225) 756-3404 . 



BA IC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The basic financial statements present information for the Board as a whole, in a format designed to make the 
statements easier for the reader 10 understand. The statements in this sect ion include the fo llowing: 

• Statement of Net Position 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

• Statement of Cash Flows. 

This also includes the notes to the financial statements, which provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The index of the notes is fou nd on page 11 
with the actual notes beginning immediately afterwards. 

,., 
T WR U 

CPAs & F,nanc,al Advisors 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COM PONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

ST A TEM ENT OF NET POSITION 
(See Notes to the Financial Statements) 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalen1s 
Receivables (ne1) 

Total Curren! Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Capital Assets 

Land 
Building & Improvements (Net) 

Total Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Pension-Related Deferred Outflows of Resources 
OPEil-Reiated Deferred Outflows of Resources 

TOTAL DEFER.RED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

June 30, 2021 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFER.R.ED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabi lities 

Accounts Payable 
Other Current Liabilities 
Current Ponion ofLong-Terrn Liabilities 

OPEB Liability 
Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Non-Current Ponion of Long-Term Liabil ities 

Compensated Absences Payable 
Net OPEB Obligation 
Net Pension Liability 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Pension-Related Deferred Inflows of Resources 
OPEil-Reiated Deferred Inflows of Resources 

TOT AL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POS ITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIAl31LITIES. DEfERRED IN FLOWS OF RESOURCES. AND NET POSITION 

s 

s 

$ 

Business-Type Activities 

1,963,973 
1,045 

1,965,018 

165,000 
14,431 

179,431 

2,144,449 

879,854 
195,760 

1,075,6 14 

3 220,063 

22,895 
138,214 

67,077 
228,186 

80,907 
2,438,082 
3,304, 103 
5,823,092 

6,05 1,278 

221,960 
514.4 15 
736,375 

179,431 
(3,747.02 I) 
(3,567,590) 

3.220.063 ,., 
T VV R U 

CPAs S. F,nanc,a/ Adv,s01s 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOU ISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
(Sec Notes to the Financial Statements) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 202 1 

Page 9 

Business-Type 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Licenses, Pennits, & Fees 
Fines 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and Related Benefits 
Meetings, Conferences, and Travel 
Professional Services 
General and Administrative 
Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING 

TOTAL NET POSITION, ENDING 

$ 

s 

Activities 

1,776,760 

195, 155 
1,97 1,915 

1,298,600 

53, 168 

9 1,044 

206,639 

3,607 

1,653,058 

318,857 

(3,886,447) 

p,5671590) 

CPAs & Financial Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISI/\N/\ 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(See the Notes 10 the Financial Statement) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

CASI-I FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods/services 
Cash paid 10 employees for services 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO 
NET CASI-I PROVIDED BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net 

Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Deferred outOows of resources 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Other Current Liabilities 
Deferred inOows of resources 
Compensated absences payable 
Net OPEl3 Obligation 
Net Pension Liability 

NET CASI I PROVIDED BY OPERA llNG ACTIVITIES 

s 

$ 

s 

$ 
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Business-type 

Activities 

1,971 ,915 
(584,652) 

(1 ,269,397) 

11 7,866 

117,866 
1,846,107 

1,963,973 

318,857 

3,607 

(447,053) 

3,261 
18,735 
16, 187 
10,468 
2,901 

190,903 

117,866 

,., 
T V 1 R LT 
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INTRODUCTION 

LOUISIANA STATE 13OARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRET E COMPONENT UN IT OF TII E STATE O F LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FIN ANCIA L STATEMENTS 
June 30, 202 1 

Page 12 

The Louisiana Sta te Board of Cosmeto logy (Board) is a component unit of the State of Louisiana. It was created by 
the Louis iana Legisla ture under the prov isions of Louisiana Revised Statute 37:75 1 and is domic iled in East Baton 
Rouge Parish. The Board serves as a statewide authority to control and regulate the practice of cosmeto logy in the 
State o f Louis iana. Operations are funded through self-generated revenues. 

The Board is composed o f 9 members that are appointed by the Governor of the State of Louisiana and serve at 
his/her pleasure. Subject to Senate confirmation, the Board is made up o f at least one registered cosmetologist o f 
each congressiona l district that has been actively engaged in the practice of cosmeto logy, a beauty shop/salon owner 
or teacher/ instructor o f cosmeto logy for at least 5 years prior to his/her appointment. Board members, as authorized 
by Louis iana Adm inistra tive Code 46:3 17(e), may receive a per diem of no t more than $ 100 per meeting or day 
spent on Board business in add itiona l to actual expense re imbursement to attend meetings or conduct board­
approved bus iness. 

N OT E I: SUMMARY O f-' SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Bas is of Presenta tion - The Gove rnm ent Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and reporting standards for state and local governments. These 
princ iples are found in the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, published 
by GASB. The accompanying financ ial statem ents have been prepared in accordance with such principles. Such 
accounting and reporting procedures a lso conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13 and to 
the guides set forth in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, and to the industry audit guide Audits of State and 
Local Governmental Units. 

Financ ial Re port ing Enti ty - Section 2 100 of the GASB Codi fication o f Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards (GA SB Cod ifi cation) established criteria for determining the governmental reporting ent ity 
and component units that should be included w ithin the reporting entity. f or financial reporting purposes the Board 
is cons idered a component unit o f the State of Louisiana beca use the State exercises oversight responsibili ty in that 
the Governor appoints the board members and public service is rendered w ith in the State ' s boundaries. The 
accompany ing financ ial statements present on ly the transactions of the Board as authorized by Louis iana siatutes 
and adm inistrative regulations. 

Annua lly, the State o f Louisiana issues basic financ ial sta tements, which include the activi ty contained in the 
financ ia l sta tements. The Sta te o f Lou isiana also issues supplementary information to the Comprehensive Annual 
Fiscal Repo11, w hich presents the Board in the combining statement of net posi tion for d iscre te boa rds and 
commissions and the combining statement o f activ ities for discrete boards and comm issions. Those fi nancia l 
statements and the supplementary infonn at ion are aud ited by the Louis iana Legislative auditor. 

Oasis o f Accounting - For financial reporting purposes, the Board is considered a specia l-purpose government 
engaged on ly in business-type activi ties. A ll acti vities of the Board are accounted for within a sing le proprietary 
(enterprise) fund . 

CPAs & Financial Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 202 1 

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Page 13 

Bas is of Accounting (Continued)- Basis of accounting refers to whe n revenues and expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting re lates to the timing of the measurements 
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. The transactions of the Board are accounted for using the 
economic resources meas urement focus. With th is measurement focus, all assets and a ll liabilities associated with 
the operations are included on the Statement of Net Pos ition. 

Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they are earned and expenses are 
recognized when the related liability is incurred. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from Nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and/or producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund 's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as Nonoperating reven ues and expenses. 

Cash and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits. Under state law, the Board 
may depos it funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts or time deposits 
with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louis iana. 

for purposes of the statement of cash flows, a ll highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less 
are considered to be cash equivalents. 

In accordance with state law, all uninsured depos its of the Board in financial institutions must be secured with 
acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par. Acceptable collateral includes certai n U.S. Government 
or Government Agency securities, certain State of Louisiana or political subdivis ion debt obligations, or surety 
bonds. As requi red by 12 U.S.C.A., Section I 823(e), a ll financial institutions pledging collateral to the Board must 
have a wrillen collateral agreement approved by the board o f directors o r loan commiltee. Investments are limited 
by Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955. If the origina l maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified 
as investments. In accordance with GASB Statement No. J I, investments are recorded at fair value with the 
corresponding increase or decrease reported in investment earnings. The Board did not have any in vestments at 
year-end. 

Capital Assets - The Board 's assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Assets required 
through contributions are capitalized at their estimated fair market va lue. Genera lly , the Board inc ludes a ll capital 
acquisitions with a cost of $5,000 in its fixed asset inventory. However, ce11ain items at a cost below that amount 
may be capitalized if benefits of the item wi ll extend beyond one year and/or the Ooard wants to monitor the item. 
Straight- line deprecation is used based on the following estimated useful lives: 

Office Equipment 
Building Improvements 
Buildings 

Years 
5- 10 

5 
40 
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Compensated Absences - Employees earn and accumulate vacation and sick leave at varying rates, depending their 
years of service. The amount of vacation and sick leave that may be accumulated by each employee is unlimited. 
Upon termination, employees are compensated for up to 300 hours of unused vacation leave at the employee's 
hourly rate of pay at the time of termination . The cost of current leave is recognized as a current-year expense. The 
liability is recognized as a long-term obligation. The current portion cannot be reasonably estimated, and 
accordingly is not reported. 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the Net Pension Liabiliry, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pens ion expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Louisiana 
State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) and Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS), 
and additions to/deductions from the system 's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by LASERS and LSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including re funds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported 
at fair value. 

Net Position - In the statement of net position, the difference between a government's assets and deferred outflows 
of resources and its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is recorded as net position. The three components 
of net position are as follows: 

Net lnveslment in Capital Assets - This category records capita l assets, net of accumulated depreciation. 

Restricted - The restricted component of net pos ition cons ists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 

UnrestricLed - The unrestricted component of net pos it ion is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in determination of net investment 
in capital assets or the restricted components of net position. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assum ptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those est imates. 

,., 
T W R U 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 

A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS 

GASB Statement 40 amended GASB Statement 3 to eliminate the requirement to disclose deposits that are insured 
with no custod ial credit risk. GASB Statement 40 requires only the separate disclosure of depos its that are 
considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk. An entity's deposits are exposed to custod ial credit risk if the 
depos it balances are e ither: I) uninsured and unco llateralized, 2 ) uninsured and collateralized with securities held 
by the pledging financial institution, or 3) uninsured and collateralized with securities he ld by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent, but not in the entity's name. 

Deposits in bank accounts are stated a t cost, which approximates market. Under state law these deposits must be 
secured by federal deposit ins urance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value 
of the pledged securities plus the federal depos it insurance must at a ll times equal the amount on deposit with the 
fisca l agent. These pledged securities are held in the name of the pledging fi scal agent bank in a holding or custodial 
bank in the form of safekeeping receipts held by the state treasurer. The deposits at June 30, 2021, consisted of the 
following: 

Cash 
Deposits in bank accounts per bank $ 1,963,973 

Bank balances exposed to custodial 
Credit risk: $ 1,728,376 
a) Uninsu red and uncollateralized 
b) Uninsured and col lateralized wi th 

Securities held by the pledging 
Jnstitution I, 728,376 

c) Uninsured and colla teralized with 
Securities held by the pledging 
Institution 's trust department or 
Age nt, but not in the entity's name 

Nonnegotiable 
Certificates 

Of 
Deposits 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Money 
Market 

Demand 
Accounts Total 

$ 1,936,973 

$ 1,728,376 

1,728,376 

'·' T Al R l J 
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A summ ary of changes in capita l assets and rela ted depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
06/30/20 Additions Retirements 06/30/2 1 

Non-Depreciable Assets 
Land $ 165,000 $ $ $ I 65,000 

Depreciable Assets 
Bui ldings a nd Improvements 163, 149 163, 149 
Machinery and Equipment 36,603 36,603 

Gross Depreciable Assets 199,752 199,752 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (181 ,7 14) (3,607) (185,321) 
Net Depreciable Assets 18,038 $ Q,607) $ 14 431 

Net Capita l Assets $ 183,0J,8 $ l 79,43 1 

The Board recorded depreciation expense of $3,607 for the year ended June 30, 202 1. 

NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities other than pens ions (note 5) and other 
postemployment bene fits (note 6) of the Board for the year ended June 30, 202 1: 

Compensated Absences 

Balance 
06/30/20 

$ 29 439 
Additions 

$ lLW 
Reductions 

$ LL.li.6} 

Balance 
06/30/2 1 

$ 80$1 

As o f June 30, 202 1, there are no known amounts due within one year for compensated absences. 

NOTE 5: PENSIONS 

LOUI IA A TATE EMPLOYEE ' RETIREMENT SY TEM (LA ER ) 

Genera l Information about the Pen ion Plan 

Plan Descriptions - Employees of the Board arc provided w ith pensions through a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan adm inis tered by the Louis iana State Employees· Retiremen t System (LASERS). Section 40 1 
of Title I I o f the Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. I I :40 I) grants to LASERS Board o f Trustees and the 
Louisiana Legis lature the aut ho rity to review administra tion, benefit terms. investments, and funding of the plan. 

LASERS issues a publicly a va ii ab le f; nanc ial cepon that can be obta incd at " " ,, . lnmson Ii"'•"'"'•' 
T \r\T R U 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 

A D ISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIA L STATEMENTS 

June 30, 202 1 

NOTE 5: PENSIONS (CONTINUED) 

Be ne fits Provided - The fo llowing is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general 
in formation purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for mo re complete information. 

Retirement - The age and years of creditable service required in o rder for a member to retire with fu ll benefits 
are established by statute, and vary depending on the membe r's hire date, employer, and j ob c lassificat ion. Our 
ra nk and file members hired prior to July I, 2006, may e ither retire with full benefits at any age upon completing 
30 years of c reditable service, at age 55 upon completing 25 years of creditable service, and at age 60 upon 
completing ten years of creditable service depending on their plan. o r at age 60 upon completing ten years of 
creditable service depending on their p lan. Those members hired between July I, 2006 and June 30, 20 15, may 
retire a t age 60 upon completing fi ve years of cred itable service and those hired on or after July I, 20 I 5 may 
re tire at age 62 upon completing five years of creditable service. The basic annual retirement benefit for 
members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation mult iplied by the number of years of creditable 
service. Additionally, members may choose to retire w ith 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially 
reduced bene fit. 

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned com pensation for the highest 36 
consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July I, 2006. For members hired July I, 
2006 o r later, average compensation is based on the member's average annua l earned compensation for the 
highest 60 consecutive months of employment. The maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed the 
lesser of I 00% of average compensation or a certain specified do llar amount of actuaria lly determined monetary 
limits, which vary depending upon the member's age a t re tirement. Judges, court officers, and certain e lected 
officia ls receive an additional annua l re tirement benefit equal to 1.0% of average compensation multiplied by 
the number o f years o f c reditable service in the ir respective capacity. As an alternative to the bas ic ret irement 
be nefits, a member may elect to receive their ret irement throughout their life, with certai n benefi ts being paid 
to their designa ted beneficiary a fte r their death. 

Act 992 of the 20 IO Louis iana Regular Legis lative Session, changed the benefi t structure for LASERS members 
hired on or a fter January I, 20 11. This resulted in three new plans: regular, hazardous duty, and judges. The 
new regular plan inc ludes regular members and those members who were formerly e ligible to participate in 
specia lty plans, exclud ing hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and judges are e ligible to reti re at age 
60 after fi ve years of creditable service and, may also ret ire at any age, with a reduced bene fit , after 20 years of 
credi table service. Hazardous duty members are e ligible to re tire with twelve years of creditable service a t age 
55, 25 years of cred itable service at any age or w ith a reduced benefit after 20 years of creditable service. 
Average compensation will be based on the member's average annua l earned compensation for the highest 60 
consecutive months of employment for a ll three new plans. Members in the regula r plan wi ll receive a 2.5% 
accrual rate. hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrua l rate, and judges a 3.5% accrua l rate. T he extra 1.0% accrua l 
rate for each year of service for court o fficers, the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, 
sergeants a t a rms, or Senate secretary, em ployed after January I, 201 1, was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty 
plan and regular members, hired prior to January I, 20 11 , who are hazardous duty employees have the option 
to trans it ion 10 the new haza rdous duty plan . ,., 

T W R U 
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Act 226 of the 20 I 4 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session established new retirement e ligibi lity for members 
o f LASERS hired on or afrer July I, 201 5, excluding hazardous duty plan members. Regular members under 
the new plan are e ligi ble to retire at age 62 after fi ve years of creditable service and, may a lso retire at any age, 
w ith a reduced benefit , a fte r 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation w ill be based on the 
member's average annua l earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment. 
Members in the regular plan wi ll receive a 2.5% accrual rate and judges a 3.5% accrua l rate, with an extra 1.0% 
accrua l rate based on all years of service as a judge. 

A member leaving employment before atta in ing minimum retirement age, but after completing certa in 
m inimum service requirements, becomes e ligible for a bene fit provided the member lives to the minimum 
service re tirement age, and does not withdraw the ir accumulated contributions. The minimum service 
requirement for be ne fi ts varies depending upon the member's employer and service classification. 

Deferred Retirement Benefits - The State Legislature autho rized LASERS to esrablish a Deferred Retirement 
Option Plan (DROP). When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even 
though they continue to work and draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is irrevocable 
once partic ipation begins. During DROP participation, accumulated re tirement benefi ts that would have been 
paid to each re tiree are separate ly tracked . For members who entered DROP prior to January I, 2004, interest 
a t a rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfo lio (not to be less than zero) will 
be credited to the retiree after partic ipation ends. At that time, the member must choose among available 
a lterna tives for the distribution of be nefits that have accumulated in the DRO P account. Members who enter 
DRO P on or after January I, 2004, are required to participate in LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SOP) which is 
adm iniste red by a third-party provider. The SOP allows DROP partic ipants to choose from a menu of 
investment options for the a llocation of the ir DROP balances. Participants may diversify their investments by 
choosing from an approved list of mutua l funds with different ho ld ings, management styles, and risk factors. 

Members e lig ible to retire and who do not choose to part icipate in D ROP may elect to receive at the time of 
re tirement an ini tial benefi t option ( IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction 
of their future bene fits. For members who selected the IBO option prior to January I, 2004, such amount may 
be withdrawn or remain in the IB0 account earning interest at a rate of one-ha lf percenr less than the System's 
realized return on its port fo lio (not 10 be less than zero). Those members who select the IBO on or after January 
I , 2004, are required to enter the SOP as described above. 

Disability Benefits - Generally, act ive members w ith ten or more years of credi ted service who become disabled 
may receive a maximum disabi lity retirement benefi t equivalent to the regular reti rement formula without 
reduction by reason of age. Upon reaching ret irement age, the disability retiree may receive a regu lar retirement 
bene fit by maki ng applica tion 10 the Boa rd of Trustees. 

Survivor ·s Benefits - Certain e lig ible surv iving dependents receive benefi ts based on the deceased member's 
compe nsation and their rela tionship to the deceased. The deceased regular member hired before January I, 2011 

who was ;n state secv;,e at the ,;me of death mest have a m;n;mum of five yca,s of sc,v;ce '"''• 'east two 
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Survivor's Benefits (continued) - of which were earned immediately prior 10 death, or who had a minimum of 
twenty years of service credit regardless of when earned in o rder for a bene fit to be paid to a minor or 
handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an unmarried child until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full­
time student. The aforementioned minimum service credit requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with 
no minor children, and benefits are to be paid for life to the spouse o r qualified handicapped child . 

The deceased regular member hired on or after January I, 201 1, must have a minimum of fi ve years of service 
credit regardless of when earned in order for a benefi t to be paid to a minor child. The aforementioned minimum 
service credit requirements for a surviving spouse are IO years, 2 years be ing earned immediately prior to death, 
and active state serv ice at the time of death, or a minimum of 20 years of service credit regardless of when 
earned. A deceased member's spouse must have been married for a t least one year before death. 

Permanent Bene/it Increases/Cost-of-Living Adiustments - As fu lly described in Title 11 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statutes, the System allows for the payment of permanent benefit increases, a lso known as eost-of­
living adjustments (COLAs) that are funded through investm ent earnings when recommended by the Board of 
Trustees and approved by the State Legis lature. 

Contributions - Contribution requirements of active employees are governed by Section 401 of Title 11 of the 
Louis iana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 11 :40 I) and may be amended by the Louis iana Legislature. Employee and 
employer contributions are deducted from a member's salary and remitted to LASERS by participating employers. 
The rates in effect during the year ended June JO, 202 1 for the various plans follow: 

Plan Employee Employer 

Plan Statu s Rate Rate 

Regular Employees hired before 7/01/06 Closed 7.50% 40.70% 

Regular Em ployees hired on or after 7/01 /06 Closed 8.00% 40.70% 
Regular Employees hired on or after 1/01/11 Closed 8.00% 40.70% 
Regular Employees hired on or after 7/01/15 Open 8.00% 40.70% 

The agency's contractually requ ired composite contribution rate for the year ended June JO, 2021 was 40. 70% of 
annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee con tributions, is expected 
to finance the costs o f benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance a ny 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. Contributions 10 the pension plan from the Agency were $357,003 for the 
year ended June 30, 2021 . 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources a nd Deferred Inflows o f 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June JO, 202 1, the Employer reported a liability of $3,226,553 for its proportionate s hare of the Net Pension 
Uabilhy. The Net Pens;on Liabifoy was mea5"<ed as of June JO. 2020 and the 101al pension liabili,Jo 
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NOTE 5: PENSIONS {CONTINUED) 
Pension Liabil ilies, Pension Expense, and Defe,-red Ou1nows of Resources and Deferred Innows of 
R esources Relaled to Pens ions 

calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Agency's 
proportion of the Net Pens ion Liabi li ty was based on a projection of the Agency's long-term share of contributions 
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions o f all partic ipating employers, actuarially determined . At 
June 30, 2020, the Agency's proportion was 0.0390%, which was a decrease of 0.00302% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 201 9. 

For the year ended June 30, 202 1, the Agency recognized pension expense o f $4 I 5,727 less employer's amo11ization 
of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contri butions and proportionate share of 
contributions of $ 157,707. 

At June 30, 202 1, the Agency reported dcfen-ed outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
LASERS pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actua l 

experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projec ted a nd ac tua l 

earnings on pens ion pla n investments 

Changes in proportion a nd differences 

between e mployer contributions and 
proportiona te share of contributions 

Employer contribut ions subsequent to the 

meas urement date 

Tota l 

Deferred Outflows 
of Reso urces 

$ 

10,325 

47 1,660 

15,307 

357,003 

$ 854,295 

Defen-ed Inflows 
of Resources 

$ (30,987) 

NIA 

(188,056) 

$ (2 I 9,043) 

$357,003 reported as de ferred ou1nows of resources re lated to pens ions resulting from Agency contributions 
subsequent 10 the measurement date will be recognized as a reduct ion of the Net Pension Liabi lity in the year ended 
June 30, 202 1. Other amounts reported as deferred out nows of resources and deferred inflows o f resources related 
to pensions wi ll be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year e nded J unc 30: 

202 1 $ 60,072 

2022 $ 136,018 

2023 $ 145,755 
2024 $ 109. 153 
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Actuaria l Assumptions - A summary of the actuaria l methods and assumptions used in determ in ing the to tal 
pens ion liabi li ty as of June 30, 202 1 are as follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Rema ining 
Service Lives 

Inves tment Rate of Return 
Inflation Rate 
Mortality 

Termination, Disability, and Retirement 

Salary Increases 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

June 30, 2020 
En try Age Norma l 

2 years 
7.55% per annum, net of investment expenses* 
2.3% per annum 
Non-disabled members - The RP-2014 Blue Collar (ma les/ 
females) and White Collar (females) Healthy Annui tant 
Tables projected on a fully generationa l basis by Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP-20 18 
Disabled members - Mortality rates based on the RP-2000 
Disabled Retiree Mortali ty Table, with no projection for 
mortal ity improvement 
Termination, d isability, and retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a five-year (20 14-20 18) experience 
study of the System's members for 20 I 9. 
Sa lary increases were projected based on a 20 J 4-20 I 8 
experience study of the System's members. The sa lary 
increase ranges for specific types of members are: 

Member Type 
Regular 

Lower 
Range 

3.0% 

Uppe r 
Range 

12.8% 

The present value of funire retirement bene fits is based on 
benefi ts currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost o f living increases. The projected 
benefit payments do not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees as they 
were deemed not to be substantively automatic . 

*The investme nt rate o f re turn used in the actuarial valuation for fundin g purposes was 7.90% , recognizing an 
add itional 35 bas is po ints for gain-sharing. The net re turn ava ilab le to fund regular plan benefits is 7.75%, which 
is the sam e as the discount rate. Therefore, we conclude that the 7.55% discount rate is reasonable. 

,., 
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CPAs & F,nanc,a/ Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COM PON ENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUJSIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCJAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 202 1 

NOTE 5: PENSIONS (CONTINUED) 

Page 22 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pens ion plan investment expense and in0ation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by add ing expected in Oat ion of2.3% and an adjustment 
for the effect of rebalanc ing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of re turn is 8.25% for 2020. 
Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan 's target asset 
a llocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table: 

Asse t C lass 

Cash 

Domestic Equity 

Jntemational Equity 

Domestic Fixed Income 

J nterna tiona I Fixed Income 

Alternative Investments 

Risk Parity 

Total F und 

Long-Te rm 
Expe cte d R eal 

R ates o f Rctum 1 

-0.59% 
4.79% 
5.83% 
1.76% 
3.98% 
6.69% 
4.20% 

5.8 1% 

1For reference only: The information above can be found in the current Employer Pension Audit Report located 
at hu p:/1/asersonl i11e. orglempl orersl gasb-68-re sources/ 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pens ion liabi lity was 7.55%. The projection o f cash 
nows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contribut ions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from panicipating employers wil l be made at the actuarial ly determined 
ra tes approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the pension pla n' s ac tuary. Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net positio n was projected to be available to make a ll projected 
future benefit payments o f current plan members. Therefore. the long-term expected rate of relllrn on pension plan 
investments was applied to a ll periods of projected bene fit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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Sensitiviry o/lhe Employer 's Proportionate Share o(lhe Net Pension liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The fo llowing presents the Employer's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liabi lity using the discount rate 
of 7 .55%, as wel I as what the Employer's proportionate share of the Net Pensio n Liabi I ity would be if it were 
calcu lated usi ng a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current rate: 

J.0 % 
D ecrease 
(6.55%) 

$ 3,964,932 

C u rrent 
D iscount R a te 

(7.55%) 

$ 3,226,553 

J.0% 
Increase 
(8.55%) 

$ 2,599,957 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separate ly issued LASERS 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financia l Report at 
www.laserso11 line.org. 

Payables to the Pension Plan - At June 30, 202 1 the Board had $57,982 in payables to LASERS for the June 
2021 employee and employer legally required contributions. 

LOUISIANA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES' RETffiEMENT SY TEM (LSERS) 

Gene ral Informa tio n a bout the Pen ion P la n 

Plan Descriptions - The Louis iana School Employees' Ret irement System (LSERS) was established as of Ju ly I , 
1947, for the purpose of providing re tirement allowances and other benefits as described under La. R.S. 11: I 00 I -
11: 1206. LSERS issues a public ly available financial report that ca n be obtained at www.lsers.net. 

Benefits Provided - The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is p rovided for general 
information purposes only. Participants shou ld refer to the appropriate s tatutes for more complete infonnation. 

Contribution Rates - Employees whose first employment making them eligible for membership in one o f 
Louisiana's state re tireme nt systems occurred before July I, 20 IO contribute 7 .50% of salary a nd employees whose 
firs t e mployment making them e lig ible for membership in one of Louis iana's s tate reti rement system s occurred on 
or after July I, 20 IO contribute 8.00% of salary. Employers contribute an actuarially determined "normal 
contribution" rate plus "accrued liability contributio n" rate. Members are not required 10 contribute to the system 
once they have enoug h service to have accrued I 00% of their fina l average compe nsation, but the employer is 
required to continue to contribute the employer' s contributio n until the member retires or enters DROP. 

Contributio n Refunds- Upon withdrawal from service, members not entitled to a retirement a llowance may receive 
a refund of accumulated contri butions. Refunds are payable ninety days after the effective date of withdrawa l from 
service, if the member·s employer has submi11ed al l contributions. (Members who are enti tled to a retirement 
allowance may wa;vc 1hc;, ,;gin 10 1hc bcncr.1 and accep1 a refond ofaccumula1cd com,-;but;ons.) ,., 
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Final Average Compensation- For members whose first employment making them eligible for membersh ip in the 
system began on or before June 30, 2006, the final average compensation is based on the 36 highest successive or 
joined mon1hs ofemploymenl. The compensa1ion used to determine the final average compensat ion cannot increase 
more than I 0% per year, unless 1he raise is due lo an increase in compensat ion by legislative act or city/parish 
system-wide salary increase. 

For members whose first employment making them eligible for membership in the sys1em began on or after July I, 
2006 and whose first employment making them eligible for membership in one of Louisiana 's state retirement 
systems occurred on or before June 30, 20 I 0, the final average compensation is based on the 60 highest successive 
or joined months of employmenl. The compensation used to determine the final average compensation cannot 
increase more than l 0% per year, unless the raise is due to an increase in compensation by legislative acl or 
city/parish system-wide salary increase. 

For members whose first employment making them eligible for membership in one of Louisiana's state re1irement 
systems began on or after July I, 201 0, the final average compensation is based on the 60 highest successive or 
joined months of employment. The compensation used 10 detem1 ine the final average compensation canno1 increase 
more than I 5% per year, unless the raise is due to an increase in compensation by legislative act or city/parish 
system-wide salary increase 

Vested Withdrawal Benefits- Members whose first employment making them elig ible for membership in one of 
Louisiana's state retirement systems occurred on or before June 30, 20 I 0, who have ten or more years of creditable 
service, may elect to leave accumulated contributions on deposit and after withdrawal from service receive a 
re1irement a llowance based on 1he creditable service and accrual rate for their period of membership upon reaching 
age sixty . Members whose first employment making them eligible for membership in one of Louisiana's stale 
retirement systems occurred on or after July I, 20 IO and on or before June 30, 2015, who have five or more years 
of creditable service, may elect to leave accumulated contributions on deposit and after withdrawal from service 
receive a retirement a llowance based on 1he cred itable service and accrual rate for their period of membership upon 
reaching age sixty. Members whose first employment making them eligible for membership in one of Louisiana's 
state retirement systems occurred on or after July I, 2015, who have five or more years of credi1able service, may 
elect Lo leave accumulated contributions on deposit and afler withdrawal from service receive a re1 irement 
allowance based on the creditable service and accrual rate for their period of membership upon reaching age sixty-
1wo. 

Normal Retirement Benefits- For members whose firs! employment making 1hem elig ible for membership in one 
of Louisiana 's stale retiremenl systems occurred on or before June 30, 20 I 0, eligibility for norma l re1iremen1 occurs 
upon 1he attainment of age 60 and IO years of accredited service, or age 55 and 
25 years of accred ited service, or a1 any age and 30 years of accredited service. The re1iremen1 allowance is equal 
to 1hrec and one-1hird percenl of 1he member's final average compcnsa1ion multiplied by his years of credi1able 
service. For members whose firsl employment making them eligible for membership in one of Louisiana 's state 
retirement systems occurred 0 11 or after July I, 20 IO and on or before June 30, 2015, e ligibility for normal retirement 
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Normal Retirement Benefits (continued)- occurs upon the aua inment of age 60 and 5 years o f accredited service. 
The re tirement a llowance is equal to two and one-ha lf percent of the member's fina l average compensation 
multiplied by his years o f creditable service. For members whose firs t employment making them e ligible for 
mem bership in o ne of Louis ia na's sta te retirement systems occurred on or a fte r July I, 2015, e ligibil ity for normal 
re tirement occurs upon the attainment o f age 62 and 5 years of accredited serv ice. The retirement allowance is equal 
to two and one-half percent o f the member's fi nal average compensation multipl ied by his years of cred itable 
service. In addit ion to the nom1a l re tirement benefi ts, mem bers receive a s upplementary a llowance equal to twenty­
four do lla rs per annum, or two do llars per month, for each year o f accred ited service. The retirement bene fits 
provided by the system canno t annua lly exceed one hundred percent o f average compensation. 

Early Retirement- Members are elig ible to retire under the early re tirement provisions if they have at least twenty 
(20) years o f serv ice c redit regardless o f aua ined age, exclus ive o f m ilitary service and unused annua l and s ick 
leave. The early retirement benefit is calculated, inc lusive o f mil ita ry service credit and a llowable unused annua l 
and sick leave, ac tuarially reduced from the earliest age that the mem ber would no rma lly become e lig ible for a 
regular re tirement benefit if they had continued in service to that age. 

The age and years o f creditable service required in order for a mem ber to retire with full benefits a re established by 
statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and j ob c lassificatio n. Our rank and fi le members 
hired prio r to July I, 2006, may either re tire with ful l benefits at any age upo n comple ting 30 years of creditable 
service or at age 60 upo n completing ten years o f c reditab le service depend ing on the ir plan. Those members hired 
be tween Ju ly I, 2006 and June 30, 20 I 5, may retire at age 60 upon completing five years o f c reditable service and 
those hired on or after July I, 201 5 may retire a t age 62 upon completing fi ve years o f creditable service. The basic 
annual retireme nt bene fit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% o f average compensation multiplied by the number 
o f years o f c reditable service. Additiona lly, mem bers may choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, with 
an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Disabiliry Bene fits- Any member who meets the min im um service requ irement for disabil ity and who has been 
offic ia lly certified as likely to be tota lly and permanently incapacitated, e ither me ntally or physically, from the 
furt her performance of the duties being performed is entitled to disabil ity be ne fits. A member whose fi rst 
employment making them eligible for mem bership in LSERS occu rred on or before June 30, 2006, may apply for 
disabil ity bene fits if he is not e ligible 10 receive a regula r service re tirement a llowance and has fi ve years of actual 
c red ited service. The d isability retirement a llowance is equal to two and o ne-ha lf percent of fina l average 
com pensation mult iplied by the years of cred itable service, but not less than th irty-three a nd one-th ird percent of 
fin al average compensation. Such members arc no t e ligible to choose an optio na l a llowance. Upo n the death of such 
disabi li ty re tiree who leaves a surviving spouse who had been married to the deceased for at least two years prior 
to death, the spo use rece ives a benefi t equa l to 75% of the benefi t being received by the d isab ili ty retiree a t death. 
These benefits are payable for the life o f the spouse unless the spouse rema rries before age 55. In such a case, the 
bene fit ceases upon the re marriage. 
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Disability Benefi ts (continued)- A member whose first employment making them eligible for membership in 
LSERS occurred on or a fter July I, 2006 and whose first em ployment making them e lig ible for membership in one 
of Louis iana 's stale re ti rement systems occurred on or before June 30, 20 IO may apply for 
disability benefits if he is not e ligible 10 receive a regular service retirement allowance and has ten years of actual 
credited service. The disability re tirement a llowance is equal to three percent of final average compensat ion 
multiplied by the years of creditable service. Upon the death of such disabili ty retiree who leaves a surviving spouse 
who had been married to the deceased for al least two years prior to the death of the disabil ity retiree, the spouse 
receives a benefit equal to 75% of the benefit being received by the disability re tiree at their death. These benefits 
are payable for the life of the spouse unless the spouse remarries before age 55. Jn such a case, the benefit ceases 
upon the remarriage. 

A member whose first employment making them e lig ible for membership in one of Louisiana's state ret irement 
systems occurred on or a fter July I, 20 IO may apply for disability benefits if he is no t e lig ible to receive a regu lar 
service retirement allowance and has ten years of actual credited service. The disability retirement allowance is 
equa l to the regular retirement formula without reduction by reason of age. A selection of retirement option must 
be made at the time of re tirement and upon the death of the disabled re tiree, the option amount selected is pa id 10 

the option beneficiary. 

Surv ivor' s Benefits - For members whose first employment making them elig ible for membership in one of 
Lou isiana's state re tirement systems occurred on or before June 30, 20 I 0: 

ln the case of a death of an active member with 5 years of creditable service (at least 2 years earned immediately 
prior to death) or a member with 20 years of service at the time of death who has a s urviving spouse with a minor 
child or children, the benefit payable is 75% of the deceased member's final average compensation or $300 per 
month, wh ichever is greater. One-third of this benefit is designated to the spouse and two-thirds to the minor chi ld 
or children. Child benefi ts cease at attainmem of eighteen years, or upon marriage, except that benefits may continue 
until age twenty-three if the c hild remains a full-time student at a high school, vocational school, college, or 
university. 

In the case of a death of a n act ive me mber with 5 years o f creditable service (at least 2 years earned immediately 
prior 10 death) or a mem ber with 20 years of service at the time of death who has no surviving spouse but has a 
minor child or children, the benefi t payable is 75% of the deceased member's fina l average compensation or $300 
per month, whichever is greater. These benefi ts are paid to the person having lega l custody of the child and benefits 
cease at altainment of e ig hteen years, or upon marriage, except that benefits may continue until age twenty-three if 
the child remains a full -time swdc111 at a high school, vocational school, college, or university. In the case ofa death 
of an active member with IO years of creditab le service (at least 2 years earned immediately prior lo death) or a 
member with 20 years of service at the time of death who has a surviving spouse but has no minor child or children, 
the benefit payable is 50% of the deceased membcr·s final average compensation or $200 per month, whichever is 
greater. Such benefits w il l not be paid to any survivi ng spouse who has remarried since the death of the member 
prior 10 the age of 55 unless the member was elig ible for regular retirement or had twenty years o f service credit on 
the date of death. 
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Surv ivor's Benefits (continued)- Any s urv iving child of a deceased member, regardless of age, who has a tota l 
physical or mental d isabi li ry and is dependent on the surv iving spouse or o ther legal guard ian, may continue 10 

receive lifetime surviving child bene fits equa l to 75% of the deceased member's final average compensation or 
$300 per month, whic hever is greater. The to ta l benefits a re reduced to an amount which, when added 10 the other 
state assistance being received, does not exceed the maximum survivor bene fi ts payable. 

In the eve nt o f death o f a member with no surviving s pouse or child due benefits, the accumulated contribut ions are 
payable to the designated bene ficiaries, or esta te. For members whose first employme nt making them elig ible for 
membership in one of Louisiana's state retirement systems occurred on or after July l , 20 I 0: In the case of a death 
of an active member with 5 years of cred itable service (at least 2 years earned immediately prio r 10 death) or a 
member with 20 years o f service at the time of death who has a surviving spouse wi th a minor child o r children, a 
spousal s urvivor is pa id a bene fit equal to 50% of the benefit to which the member would have been entitled ifhe 
had retired on the date o f h is death using the member's applicable accrual ra te regardless of years of service or age, 
or $600 per month, whicheve r is greater. These benefits are payable for the li fe o f the spouse unless the spouse 
remarries before age 55. In such a case, the benefit ceases upon the remarriage, and resumes payment upon a 
subsequent divorce or death of a new spouse. 

When all surviv ing chi ldren c·ease to be e lig ible for benefits, the s urviving spouse is paid the bene fi ts due to a 
surviving spouse without minor children or disabled children, as described below. Jn add ition to any benefits 
payable to a spouse or in cases where only surviving m inor or disabled children are due bene fi ts, each surviving 
e lig ible child . subject to a max imum of two children, is paid 50% percent of the bene fi t to which a spouse with 
chi ldren is entitled. These benefits are payable even if a member dies after re tireme nt leaving a n e lig ible minor or 
disabled child. Any surv iving child of a deceased member, regardless o f age, who has a total physica l or mental 
disability and is dependent on the surviving spouse or other legal guardian may continue 10 receive surviving child 
benefit s. The total bene fits pa id are reduced to an amount which, when added 10 the other state assistance being 
received does no t exceed the maximum survivor benefits payable. 

In the case of a death of an active member with IO years of cred itable service (at least 2 years earned immed iately 
prior 10 death) or a member w ith 20 years of service at the time of death who has a s urviving spouse 10 whom they 
were married for at least one year prior to the ir death who has no minor child or children, a spousal survivor benefit 
equal 10 the accrued bene fit that would have been d ue under opt ion 2, or $600 per month, whichever is greater, is 
payable. Un less the member was e ligible to retire at the time of death, such spousa l benefi ts cease upon remarriage 
and resume upon a subsequent divorce or death of the new spouse. In the even t o f death of a member wi th no 
surviv ing spouse or child due benefi ts, the accumu lated contribut ions are payable 10 the des ignated beneficiaries, 
o r estate . 

Deferred Retirement Benefits - Jn lieu o f te rminating employment a nd accepting a service retirement a llowance, 
any member o f the system who is e lig ible to receive a regular retiremen t a ll owance may e lect lo participate in the 
DROP and defer the rece ipt o f benefits. /\n e lection to pa rt icipate may be made on ly once and the duration of 
part icipation sha ll be specified and sha ll not exceed three years. The three year period begins within sixty calendar 
days after the member reaches e li gibility. The participation pe riod must end not more than three,iand sixty 
ca lendar days from the date the member reaches eligibility. Upon I) 
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commencement o f participation in the p lan, acti ve membership in the system te rminates and neither the employee 
no r employer contributio ns are payable. Compensation and creditable service remain as they existed o n the e ffective 
date of commencement of partic ipatio n in the plan and c reditable service excludes conversion of sick and annual 
leave. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable, had the member elected to cease employment 
and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP account. Upon termination o f employment at 
the end of the specified period of partic ipation, a partic ipant in the program may receive, at his option, a lump sum 
payment from the DROP account equal to the payments to the account o r systematic disbursements based on the 
individua l's subaccount in any manner approved by the Board. The monthly bene fit s that were being paid into the 
fund during the period of participation wi ll beg in to be paid to the retiree based on the option selected at DROP 
entry. I f employment is not te rminated at the end o f the DROP pe riod, payments into the account cease and 
employee and employer contributio ns resume. Monthly re tirement benefi1s payable after termination of 
part ic ipa1io n in the plan and employment include a "base benefit" equa l to the partic ipant's monthly credit to the 
account plus convers ion of sick and annual leave, if any, based o n the fina l average compensation rate used to 
calculate the monthly credit and an additional benefit if employment continues. The additio nal benefit is based on 
service credit for the period after plan participation. If the participant dies while still employed, the credits and 
bene fits, if any, due beneficiaries a re payable as if the member retired immediately prior to death. 

Cost-of-Liv ing Ad justments - Act 333 of2007 establis hed an Experience Account to be used to pay cost of living 
adjustments (COLAs), or permanent benefit increases (PBis). The Experience Account is c redited with 50% of tile 
investment experience gain in excess of $ 15 million ( indexed based on increases in the actuarial value of assets 
a fte r June 30, 20 15) a lo ng with that portion of the net investment income, if any, at1ributable to the prior year 
ba lance, subject to maximum accumulation limitation based upon the Plan ' s funded percentage. The account is also 
debited with that portio n of the system 's net investment loss, if any, anributable to the prior year balance. In no 
event may the amount in the Experience Account fall below zero. 

Contributions - Contri bution requ irements of active employees arc governed by the Louisiana Revised Sta tutes (La. 
R.S. 11: 1145. 1 (c) (2)) a nd may be amended by the Louis iana Leg islature. Employee and employer contributions 
are deducted from a member's salary and remiued 10 LSERS by participating employers. The rates in effect during 
the year ended June 30, 202 1 for the various plans fo llow: 

The agency's contractua lly required compos ite con1ribu1ion rale for the year ended June 30, 202 1 was 29.4% of 
annual payro ll , actuarially determ ined as an amount 1ha t, whe n combined wi1h employee contributions, is expected 
to fi nance the costs o f benefits earned by employees during the year, w ith an add i1ional amount 10 finance any 
Unfunded Actuaria l Accrued Liability . Contribut ions 10 the pens ion plan from the Agency were $ 10,567 for the 
year ended June 30, 202 1. 
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At June 30, 202 1, the Employer reported a liabi li ty of $77,550 for its proportionate share of the Net Pension 
Liability. The Net Pension Liabili ty was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liabil ity used to 
calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Agency's 
proportion of the Net Pension Liabi li ty was based on a projection of the Agency's long-term share of contributions 
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially detennined. At 
June 30, 2020, the Agency's proportion was 0.009652%, which was a decrease of 0.000064% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 20 I 9. 

for the year ended June 30, 2021 , the Agency recognized pension expense of $1 1,034 plus employer' s amortization 
of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions of $2,53 1. 

At June 30, 2021 , the Agency reported deferred out flows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
LSERS pensions from the fol lowing sources: 

Defe rred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Reso urces 

Differences between expected and actual 

expenence $ $ ( 1,909) 

Changes of assumptions 462 

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 11 ,808 NIA 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between Employer contributions and 
proport ionate share of contributions 2,722 (1,008) 

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 10,567 

Tota l $ 25,559 $ {2,917) 
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$ I 0,567 reported as deferred outflows o f resources re lated to pensions resulting from Agency contributions 
subseque nt to the measureme nt date wi ll be recognized as a reduction o f the Net Pe nsion Liability in the year ended 
June 30, 202 1. O ther amounts reported as deferred outflo ws of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pens ions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

699 
3,075 
3,585 
2,701 

Actuarial Assumptions - A summary o f the actuarial methods and assumptions used in detennining the tota l pension 
liabi lity as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptio ns: 
Expected Remaining 

Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 

Inflat io n Rate 

Morta lity 

Sa lary Increases 

Cost of Liv ing Adjustments 

June 30, 2020 
Entry Age Normal 

3 years 

7.00% per annum, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation 

2.50% per annum 

Morta lity rates based o n the RP-2014 Hea lt h Annuitant Tables, R.P-
20 14 Sex Distinc t Employee Tables, and RP-2014 Sex Distinct 
Disabled Tables 

Sa lary increases were projected based on a 20 13-2017 experience 
study o f the System's members. The sa lary increase is 3.25%. 

The present value o f future retirement benefi ts is based on benefits 
currently being paid by the System and inc ludes previously granted 
cost of living increases. The present value and accrned liabi lit ies 
include one future COLA, though not yet authorized by the legislature 
by includ ing the recognition of the existing balance in the Experience 
Account together with the present value of future contributions to the 
Account up 10 the maximum pennissible value of the Accounl based 
,pon the m,cnt amomu 1;m;1a,;ons. ,., 
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The long-term expected ra te of return selected for this report by the fund was 7.00%. Based on prior projections of 
cash 0ows and in conjunctio n with the statutory and consti tutional provis ions affecting the Louis iana School 
Employees' Retirement System with regard to actuarial funding of the re tirement system, the pension plan's 
Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be avai lable to make a ll projected future benefit payments to current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pens ion plan investments was applied to a ll periods 
of projected benefi t payments to determine the total pension liability. Thus, the discount rate used to measure the 
total pens io n liabi lity was 7.00%, net o f investment expenses. For Fiscal 2019, the discount rate used was 7.00% 

The ta rget a llocation and best estimates o f arithmetic real rates o f re turn for each major asset c lass as of June 30, 
2020, are su mmarized in the following table: 

Asset C lass 
Fixed Income 
Equity 
A lte rna tives 
Real Estate 
Totals 

Jnfla tio n 

Target A llocatio n 

26% 

39% 
23% 
J2% 

100% 

Expecte d Arithe t ic Nomina l Return 

Lo n g-Te rm 
Ex pected Real 
Rate o fRetun1 

0 .92% 
2.82% 
1.95% 
0 .69% 
6 .38% 

2.00% 
8.38% 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the tota l pension liabi lity was 7.00%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determ ine the discount ra te assumed that contributions from plan members will be made a t the current 
contri bution rates and that contributio ns from participating employers will be made at the actuaria lly determined 
rates approved by Public Reti rement Systems Actuarial Commit tee (PRSAC) taking into considerat ion the 
recommendation o f the System 's actuary. Based o n those assumpt io ns, the System's fiduciary net posit ion was 
projected to be avai lable to make a ll projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pens ion plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pens ion liability. 

Sensitivity o(the Employer 's Proportionate Share oft he Net Pension Liability 10 Changes in the Discount Rate -
T he fo llowing presents the net pens ion liability of the participating employers calculated using the discount rate of 
7.00% as well as what the employers' net pension liabi lity would be if it were ca lculated us ing a discount rate that 
is o ne percentage point lower o r o ne percentage point higher 1ha 11 the current rate as of June 30, 202 1: 

Employer's proportiona te 

share of the net pension 

liability 

UITC lll 

1.0% Decreas e Dis count Rate 
(6.00%) (7.00%) 

$ IO 1.579 $ 77.550 

1.0% I nc rcas c 
(8.00 % ) 

$ 56.999 

CPAs & Financ,a/ Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COM PONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOU ISIANA 

NOT ES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 202 1 

NOTE 5: PENS IONS (CONT INUED) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed infonnation a bout the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position is available in the separate ly issued LSERS 2020 Comprehensive 
Annua l Financial Report at ww" .lsers.net. 

Pavables to the Pension Pion - A t June 30, 202 1, the Board had $153 in payables to 
LSERS for the June 202 1 employee and employer legally required contributions. 

NOTE 6: OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFJTS 
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Plan Description - The Office of Group Benefits (0GB) administers the State of Louisiana Post-Retirement Benefits 
Plan - a defined-benefit, multiple-em ployer post-employment benefit plan. The plan provides medical, prescript ion 
drug, and life insurance benefi ts to retirees, disabled ret irees, and their e ligible bene fi ciaries through premium 
subs idies. C urrent employees, who partic ipate in an 0GB health pla n whi le active, are eligible for plan benefi ts if 
they are enro lled in the 0GB health plan immediately before the date of retirement and ret ire under one of the state 
s ponsored re tirement systems (Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, Teachers' Retirement System of 
Louis iana, Louisiana School Employees' Ret irement System, or Louisiana State Police Retirement System,) or they 
re tire from a participating employer that meets the qualifications in the Louisiana Administrative Code 32:3.303. 
LRS 42:501 -883 assigns the autho rity to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plan to the state 
legislature. LRS 42:802, 42:82 1, and 42:85 1 provides the authority under which the obl igations of the plan 
members, employers, and other contribu ting entities that contribute to the plan are established or may be amended. 

0GB offers re tirees four self- insured healthcare p lans and one fully insured plan. Retired employees who have 
Medicare Part A and Part B coverage also have access to six fully insured Medicare Advantage plans, which inc lude 
three Vantage HMO plans and one plan each from Peoples Health, Humana, and HMO Louisiana. Retired 
employees who have both Medicare Part A and Part Bare a lso eligible to partic ipate in Jndividual Medicare Market 
Exchange products through the exchange broker Via Benefi ts and receive $200/$300 health reimbu rsement 
arrangement ( HRA) credits monthly. 

There are no assets accumu lated in a trust that meets the crite ria of paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75 . The plan is 
funded on a " pay-as-you-go bas is" under which the contributions to the plan are generally made at about the same 
time and in about the same amount as benefi t payments become due. 

Employer contributions are based on plan premiums and the employer contribution percentage. The percentage is 
based on the date of participation in an 0GB plan (before o r after January I , 2002) and employee years of service 
at retirement. Employees who begin participation or rejo in the plan before January I, 2002, pay approximately 25% 
of the cost of coverage (except sing le re tirees under age 65, who pay approximate ly 25% of the active employee 
cost). For those beginning participation or rejo ining on or after January I, 2002, the percentage of premiums 
contributed by the employer and retiree is based on the following schedu le: 

0GB Partic ipation 
Under IO years 
I0 - 14 years 
15 - 19 years 
20 + years 

Employer Share 
19% 
38% 
56% 
75% 

Retiree Share 
8 1% 
62% 
44% 
25% 

CPAs & F1nanc1al Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BO AR D OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCR ET E COMPONENT UN IT OF TH E STATE OF LOU ISIAN/\ 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 202 1 

NOTE 6: OTHER POSTEMPLOYM ENT BENEFITS (CONTJN UEO): 
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Plan Description (continued)- Jn addition to healthcare bene fits, re tirees may elec110 receive li fe insurance benefits. 
Basic and supplementa l life insurance is available for the individua l retirees and spouses of ret irees su bject 10 
maximum va lues. Employers pay approx imate ly 50% of monthly premiums for individua l re tirees. The retiree is 
responsible for I 00% of the premium for de pendents. 

Tota l Collective O PEB Liability and C hanges in Total Collective OPES L iabi li ty - At June 30, 202 1, the Board 
reported a liability of $2,505, 159 for its proportionate share of the total collective OPES liability. The total 
collective O PEB liability was measured as of July I, 2020 and was determ ined by an actuaria l valuation as of that 
date. The Board 's proportionate share of the tota l collective OPEl3 liabil ity a t June 30, 20 19, totaled $2,502,258. 

The Board 's proportionate share percentage is based on the employer's individua l OPEB actuaria l accrued liability 
in re la tio n to the total OPEB actuarial accrued liability for a ll partic ipating ent ities incl uded in the State of Louisiana 
reporting enti ty. At June 30, 202 1, the Board 's proportion was 0.0302%. Because the beginning balance was restated 
us ing a ro llback of the July r, 2020, va luat ion assuming no experience gains or losses, there is no change to the 
proportion since the prio r measurement date. 

The tota l collective OPEB liability in the July I , 2020, actuaria l valuation was determ ined using the fo llowing 
actuaria l methods, assumptions and other inputs, applied to a ll periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherw ise specified: 

• Actuarial Cost Method - Entry Age Normal, level percentage of pay 
• Estimated Remaining Service Lives - 4.5 
• Inflal ion Rate - Consumer Price Index (CPI) 2.80% 
• Salary increase rate - consistent with the State of Louisiana's pension value assumptions 
• Discount ra le - 2.79% based on June 30, 2019 Standard & Poor's 20-year municipal bond index rate 
• Mortality rates - based on the RP-201 4 Combined Hea lthy Mortality Table, or R.P-20 14 Disabled Retiree 

Morta lity Table; both tables projected on a fully generational basis by Morta lity Improvement Scale MP-
20 17. 

• Healthcare cost trend rates - 7% for pre-Medicare e lig ible employees g rading down by 0.25% each year, 
beginning in 2020-202 1 through 2029, to an ultimate rate of 4.5% in 2029; 5.5% for post-Medicare e ligible 
employees grad ing down by 0.25% each year, begi nn ing in 2019-2020, to an ult imate rate o f 4.5% in 2024 
and thereafter; 1he initia l trend was developed us ing the National Health Care Trend Survey; 1he ultimate 
trend was developed us ing a bu ilding block approach which considers Consumer Price Index, Gross 
Domestic Prod uct, and technology g rowth. 

Changes of assum ptions and other inputs reflect a cha nge in the d i count rate from 2.98 as of July I, 2019, to 2. 79% 
as of Ju ly I , 2020 

CPAs & Ftndnetal Advisors 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 202 1 

NOTE 6: OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {CONTINUED): 
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Total Collective OPES Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The followi ng presents the Board's proportionate share of the total collective OPES Liabi lity using the current 
discount rate as well as what the Board's proportionate share o f the total collective OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lowe r or one percen tage-point higher than the 
current rate: 

Current Discount 
1.0% Decrease Rate 

( 1.79%) (2. 79%) 

Proportionate Share of Total 

1.0% Increase 
(3.79%) 

Collective OPES Liability $ 2,975,822 $ 2,505,159 $ 2, I 38,287 - -------'--

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Tota l Collect ive O PEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates - The followin g presents the Board's proportionate share of the total collective OPEB liability using 
the current healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the Board 's proportionate share of the total collective OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated us ing healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current rates: 

Proportionate Share of Total 

1.0% Decrease 
(6.00%) 

Current 
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 
(7.00%) 

1.0% Increase 
(8.00%) 

Collective OPEB Liability $ 2,128,340 $ 2,505,159 $ 2,994,712 --------'--

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 , the Board recognized OPES expense of ($74 ,00 I). At June 30, 202 1, the Board 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources re lated to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

CPAs t. f,nanc,al Adv,sors 



LOUIS IANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COM PONENT UNIT Of THE STATE Of LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

NOTE 6: OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFlTS (CONTJNUED): 

Deferred 
Outflows of Deferred Inflows 
Resources ofResourccs 

Changes of assumptions or other inputs $ 128,683 $ (482,660) 

Differences between benefit payments and 

proportionate share of benefit payments (J 1,756) 

Amounts paid by the employer for OPEB 

subsequent to the measurement date 67,077 

Total $ 195,760 $ {514,4162 
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Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from the Board's benefit payments subsequent to the 
measurement date wi ll be recognized as a reduction of the total collective OPEB liabi lity in the year ended June 30, 
20 I 9. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB' 
will be recognized in the OPEB expense as follows: 

NOTE 7: LEASES 

Year Ende d 
2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

Ne t Amount 
Recognized 

in OPEB 
Expense 

$ 

172,7 13 

136,081 

69,01 3 

7,926 

385,733 

Operaling Leases. The Board has no operating leases. 

Capital Leases. The Board has no capital leases. 

NOTE 8: RELATED PARTY TRANSACT IONS 

The re were no related pa1ty transactions during the year. 

,~, 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

NOTE 9: JUDGMENTS. CLA IMS. AND SIMILAR CONTINGENCIES 
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Obligations and losses arising from judgments, claims, and simi lar contingencies are paid through the state's self­
insurance fu nd and are not reflected in the accompanying special purpose financia l reports. The se lf-insurance fund 
is operated by the Office of Risk Management (ORM), the state agency responsi ble for the state's risk managemen1 
program. 

From time to time, the Board is involved in various legal maners which arise in the ordinary course of its operation. 

As of June 30, 202 1 the Board was involved in litigation related to the Board 's policies for requ ired licenses or 
pem1its for natural hair braiding. The plaintiffs contend that the Board's policies are unconstitutional and seek to 
pem1anently enjoin the Board from enforcing requirements in L.A.C. 46:XXX. I IO I, 1105, and 1107; nominal 
damages for $ 1 for violations of the Louisiana Constitution; and for other unspecified relief. The Board intends to 
oppose the plaintiffs Motion for Summary Judgment and continue to defend the claim. 

NOTE IO: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Board has evaluated a ll subsequent events through December 17, 2021, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued . 

CPAs & Fmanc,al Advisors 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY I FORMATION 

Schedule I: Employer's Share of Net Pension Liabiliry - LASERS 

Presents the Board ' s Net Pension Liabil ity to LASERS 

Schedule 2: Board Contributions - LASERS 

Presents the amounts of contributions the Board made to the LASERS pens ion system 

Schedule 3: Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability - LSERS 

Presents the Board's Net Pension Liability to LSERS 

Schedule 4: Board Contributions - LSERS 

Presents the amounts of contributions the Board made to the LSERS pension system 

Schedule 5: Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 

Presents certain specific data regarding the employer's proportionate share of the total collective Other 
Postemployment Benefits liabili ty 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE l: EM PLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY - LASERS 
For the Seven Years Ended June 30, 2021 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension 

Liabil i ty (Asset) 0.03900% 0.04203% 

2019 

0.04370% 

2018 2017 

0.04560% 0.04687% 

2016 2015 

0.04524% 0.04456% 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net 

Pension Liability (Asset) 

Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 

$ 3,226,553 $ 3,045, 182 $ 2,980,172 $ 3,209,636 $ 3,680,805 $ 3,077,207 $ 2,786,288 

$ 818,233 $ 823,066 $ 845,675 $ 850,159 $ 88 1,297 $ 858,686 $ 820,930 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net 

Pension L iabil i ty (Asset) as a Percentage o f 

its Covered-Employee Payroll 394.33% 369.98% 352.40% 377.53% 417.66% 358.36% 339.41 % 

Plan Fiduciary 1et Position as a Percentage 

of the Total Pension Liability 58.00% 62.90% 64.30% 62.50% 57.70% 62.70% 65.00% 

Schedule is in I ended to show information for IO years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

*The amounts presented have a measurement date of the prev ious fiscal year end. 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE 2: EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -LASERS 
For the Seven Years Ended June 30, 2021 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractua lly Contractua lly 
Required Required Contribution Employer's Covered 

Contribution Contribu t ion Deficiency (Excess) Employee Payroll 
328,111 $ 357,003 $ (28,892) $ 818,233 
340,279 $ 338,691 $ 1,588 $ 836,066 
320,511 $ 310,099 $ 10,41 2 $ 845,675 
322,210 $ 319,071 $ 3,139 $ 850,159 
315,504 $ 312,935 $ 2,569 $ 881,297 
319,43 I $ 325, 143 $ (5,712) $ 858,686 
305,386 $ 311,786 $ (6,400) $ 820,930 

Schedule is intended to show information for l O years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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LOUISIA1 A STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE 3: EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY - LSERS 
For the Seven Years Ended June 30, 202 1 

2021 2020 2019 2018 201 7 

Employer's Proportion of the et Pension 
Liability {Asset) 

0.00965% 0.009716% 0.00972% 0.00934% 0.00931% 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liabili ty (Asset) s 77,550 s 68,018 s 64,963 s 59,750 s 70,222 

Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 32,392 $ 29,138 $ 28,267 $ 26,978 s 32,300 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of its 
Covered-Employee Payroll 

239.41 % 233.43% 229.82% 221.48% 217.4 1% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Post1ion as a Percentage of 
the Total Pension Liability 69.67% 73.49% 74.44% 75 .03% 70.09% 

Schedule ,s intended t<> shnw information for 10 years Addi11onal years will be displayed as they become available. 

.. The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

REQU IR ED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE 4: EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - LSERS 
For the Seven Years Ended June 30, 2021 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually Contractually 
Required Required Contribution Employer's Covered 

Con trib ution Contribution Deficiency (Excess) Employee Payroll 

8,541 $ 10,567 s (2,026) s 32,392 

7,974 $ 9,736 $ (1,762) $ 29,138 

7,804 $ 9,342 $ ( 1,538) $ 28,267 

7,355 s 8,909 $ (1,554) $ 26,978 

9,012 $ 8,854 $ 158 $ 32,300 

8,5 16 $ 8,802 $ (286) $ 30,523 
7,654 $ 8,317 $ (663) $ 27,434 

Contributions as a 
% of Covered 

Employee Payroll 

32.62% 

33.41% 

33.05% 

33.02% 

27.41% 

28.84% 

30.32% 

Schedule i., infended /0 show informa1ionfor 10 years. Addiliona/ years will be displayed as they become available. 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT OF THE STATE OF LOU ISIANA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE 5: SCHEDULE OF THE EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE TOTAL 
COLLECTIVE OPEB LIABILITY 

For the Five Years Ended June 30, 2021 

Fiscal Year 

2021 2020 2019 
Employer's proportion of the total collective OPEB liabi l ity 0.0302% 0.0324% 0.034 I% 

2018 
0.0340% 

Employer's proportionate share of the total collective OPEB 
liab i l ity 2,505,159 

626, I 02 

2,502,258 2,914,278 2,951,206 

Employer's covered-employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the total collective OPEB 

liab i lity as a percentage of the covered-employee payroll 

*The amounts presented were determined as of the 

measurement date (July I). 

637,826 600,699 788,727 

400.12% 392.3 I% 485.15% 374.17% 

This schedule is inLended to show information for IO years. Additional years will be presented as they become available. 
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFO RM ATION 
For the Year Ended June 30, 202 1 

LASERS 

Changes of Benefit Terms 
There were no changes of benefit terms for the seven years ended June 30, 202 1. 

Changes of Assumptions 
Investment Salary 

Year ended Measure ment Discount Rate Increases for 

Date of Return 
Inflation Regular 

June 30, Rate Rate Members 
20 15 6/30/2014 7.75% 7.75% 3.00% 4.00% 

2016 6/30/20 15 7.75% 7.75% 2.50% 4.00% 

201 7 6/30/20 I 6 7.75% 7.75% 2.50% 4.00% 

2018 6/30/2017 7.70% 7.70% 2.50% 3.00% 

20 19 6/30/2018 7.65% 7.65% 2.50% 3.85% 

2020 6/30/2019 7.55% 7.55% 2.50% 2.50% 
2021 6/30/2020 7.55% 7.55% 2.30% 3.00% 

LSERS 

Changes of Benefit Tenns 
There were no changes of benefit te lllls for the seven years ended June 30, 2021. 

Changes of Assumptions 
Investment Salary 

Year ended Measurement Discount 
Rate Jncreases for 

Inflation Regular 
June JO, Date Rate 

of Return 
Rate Members 

2015 6/30/20 14 7.25% 7.25% 2.75% 2.75% 

20]6 6/30/20 15 7.00% 7.00% 2.75% 3.20% 

20 17 6/30/20 16 7.13% 7.13% 2.63% 3.08% 

20 18 6/30/20 17 7. 13% 7.13% 2.63% 3.08% 

20 19 6/30/2018 7.06% 7.06% 2.50% 3.08% 

2020 6/30/2019 7.06% 7.06% 2.50% 3.25% 

202 1 6/3 0/2020 7.00% 7.00% 2.50% 3.25% 

OPEB 

Clumges of Benefit Terms 
There were no cha nges o f benefi t te rms for the four years ended June 30, 2020. 

Changes of Assumptions 
Changes of assumptions and other in puts reflect a change in the discount 
rate from 2.98 as of July I, 2019, 10 2.79% as of July I, 2020. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule 6: Per Diem Paid lo Board Membe rs 

Presents amounts pa id to board mem bers 

Schedule 7: Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head 

Presents amounts paid to agency bead 

Schedule 8: Budgetary Compa rison - Proprietary Fund 

Presents amounts and variances for budget and actua l 

Annual F isca l Report 

Presents amounts reported to the Office o f Statewide Reporting and Accounting Po licy 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 

A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SUPPLEMENTARY IN FORMATION 

SCHEDULE 6: PER DIEM PAID TO BOARD MEMBERS 

Board Members 

Me lla Brown 
William Grayson 
Eliza Hebert 
Kevin Martin 
James Williams 

For the Year Ended June 30, 202 1 

Total Per Diem Paid to Board Members 

Amoum 

$ 1,281 
1,663 

800 
1,413 

200 

$ ~.151 

In compl iance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature, this 
schedule of per diem paid to board members is presented for the year ended June 30, 202 I. 

SCHEDULE 7: COMPENSATION, BENEFJTS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 
For the Year Ended June 30, 202 1 

Agency Head: Stephen Young, Executive Director 

Purpose 

Salary 
Benefits - Retirement 
Benefits - Health Insurance 

Total Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head 

Amount 

$ 75,004 
30,077 
6 546 

$_1 11,621 
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LOUISIANA STATE BOMW OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF LOU ISIANA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE 8: BUDGETARY COMPAR ISON - PROPRIETARY FUND 
For 1he Year Ended June 30. 202 1 

Aclual Variance wi1h 

Amounts Fnal Budget 
Budgeted Amounts (Budge1ary Positive 

Ori~inal Final nasis) (Negative) 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Licenses, Permits, & Fees $ 1,765,000 $ 1,765,000 $ 1,776,760 $ 11 ,760 

Fines 135,000 135,000 195, 155 60, 155 

Total Operating Revenues 1,900,000 1,900,000 1,97 1,9 15 71,915 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

Salaries and Related Benefits 1,567,000 1,567,000 1,298,600 (268,400) 

Meetings, Conferences, and Travel 65,000 65,000 53, 168 {1 1,832) 

Professional Services 165,000 165,000 9 1,044 (73,956) 

General and Administrative 260,000 260,000 206,639 (53,36 I) 

Depreciation 3,607 3,607 

Total Operating Expenses 2,057,000 2,057,000 1,653,058 (403,942) 

Operating Income (Loss) ( 157,000) ( 157,000) _3 18,857 475,857 

Net Position, Beginning (4 ,193,27 1) (4,193,27 1) (3,886,447) 

Net Posit ion, Ending $ (4,350,27 1) $ (4,350,27 1) $ (3,567,590) 

Ill 
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ANNUAL FISCAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 2021 

AG ENC\': 20- 11-16 - Lou;s;ana S1a1< Boa,d of Cosm<1ology 

PREPARED 8Y: •• 

PHO NE NUMBER:·· 

EMA ILADDRESS:-

SUBM ITT,IL DAT£:·· 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASI I EQUIVALENTS 

INVESTMENTS 

RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS 

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

RECEIVABLES (NET) 

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (NE1) 

LEASES RECEIVABLE (NET) 

AMOUNTS DUE FROM PRIM ARY GOVERNMENT 

DUE FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 

INVENTORIES 

PREPAYMENTS 

NOTES RECEIVABLE 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTA L CURRENT ASSETS 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 

RESTRICTED ASSETS. 

CASH 

INVESTMENTS 

RECEIVABLES (NET) 

NOTES RECEIVABLE 

OTHER 

INVESTMENTS 

RECEIVABLES (NE1) 

NOTES RECEIVABLE 

PLEDGES RECEJVABLE (NE1) 

LEASES RECEI VABLE (NET) 

CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECI ATION & AMORTIZATION) 

LAND 

BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 

MACHINERY AND EQUIPM ENT 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS 

TOTALNONCURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OllTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

ACCUMULATED DECREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF HEDGING DERIVATIVE 
INSTRUMENTS 

DEFERRED AMOUNTS ON DEBT REFUNDING 

ADJUSTMENT OF CA PIT AL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

GRANTS PAID PRIOR TO MEETING TIME REQUIREMENTS 

IN !"RA-ENTITY TRANSFER OF FUTURE REVENUES (TRANSFEREE) 

I OSSES FROM $,\LE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTIONS 

DIRECT LO,\N ORIGINATION COSTS FOR MORTGAGE LOANS ll[LD roR SAL[ 

ASSCT RETIREMEN'l 013LIG1\TIONS 

OPFB-REI.Al ED DEFF.RRFD OUTFLO\VS 01 RESOURC[S 

1,963,973.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,045.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Sl ,965,018.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

165,000.00 

14,431.00 

0.00 

000 

000 

0.00 

000 

SI 79,431.00 

S2, 144,449.00 

0 00 

000 

000 

0 00 

0 00 

0 00 

000 

000 
195 760 0() 
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Al UAL Fl C AL R E PORT (A FR) 
FOR 2021 

AGENCV: 20-11-16 • Lou,s,ana S1a1c Board ofC"osmc10l0~') 

PREPARED DY:·-

PIIONE NUMBER: -

Ei\lAIL ,\ 0 0 RESS:-

SUBi\llTIA LDATE:-

PENSION-RELA TEO DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL DEFERR ED OUTFLOWS OF RE OURCES 

TOTA L ASSETS A O DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITI ES: 

ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE ANO ACCRUALS 

ACCRUED INTEREST 
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

AMOUNTS DUE TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

DUE TO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 

AMOUNTS HELD IN CUSTODY FOR ornERS 

UNEARNED REVENUES 

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM L11\ BILITIES: 

CONTRACTS PAYABLE 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAY ABLE 

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

ESTIMATED LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS 

NOTES PAYABLE 
BONDS PAY ABLE 

OPEB LIABILITY 

POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS 

011-IER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL CURRE T LIA BILITIES 

NONCllRRENT PORT ION OF LO C-TERM LIABILITI ES: 

CONTRACTS PAYABLE 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAY ABLE 

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

ESTIMATED LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS 

NOTES PAYABLE 

BONDS PAYABLE 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

NET PENSION LIABILITY 

POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS 

ornER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

UNEARNED REVENUE 

TOTAL LONG-T ER!\ I LIABILITIES 
TOT,\L LIABILITIES 

DEFERR ED I FLOWS OF RESOURCES 

ACCUMULATED INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF HEDGING DERIVATIVL 
INSTRUMENTS 

DEFERRED AMOUNTS ON DFBT REFUNDING 

ADJUSTMENT OF CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

GRANTS RECEIVED PRIOR TO MEr rlNG TIMF HFQUIREMENTS 

SALES/INTRA-ENTITY 1 RANSFER or FUl URr RI. VFNU[S (TRANSFEROR) 
G1\INS FROM SALE-1.EASl::OACI... TRANSACTIONS 

SPLIT INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
POINTS RECEIVtD ON LOAN ORIGINA flON 

LOAN ORIGIN1\TION ILLS RC.Cf.IV! DI 0 1( MOR I C, ,\GI: l O•\NS Ill I DI OR SAi 1-

0PER-RELATCD DI.I FRR[D I 11 LOWS or lff~OURCI ~ 

879,854 00 

S 1,073,6 I ~.00 

SJ,220,063.00 

22,895 00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

0.00 

000 

138,2 14 00 

000 

0.00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

67,077 00 

000 

000 

S228, l 86.00 

000 

80,907 00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

2.~38,082 00 

J,304, 103 00 

000 
000 

000 

S5,823,092.00 

S6,051,278.00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 
000 

000 

000 

000 
5 1~ 11 )()(1 
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ANNUAL FISCAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 2021 

:\ G ENC\': 20· 1 l • l 6 • Louisiana State" Boa1d of Cosmetology 

PREPARED llY: --

l'MONE NUMBER : -

EMAIL ADDllESS:-

SUUM ITTAL DATE: -

PENSION-RELATED DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSIT ION: 

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

RESTRJCTED FOR· 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

DEBT SERVICE 

NONEXPENDABLE 

EXPENDABLE 

OTHER PURPOSES 

UNRESTRICTED 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

221 ,960.00 
$736,375.00 

179,431.00 

0.00 

000 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

$(3,747,021.00) 

$(3,567,590.00) 
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ANNUAL FISCAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 2021 

AGENCY: 20. 11.1 6 - Lou1s1a11a Stalt' Boa•d of Cosmc1ology 

PREPARED BY: ·· 

PIIONE NllMBER:-

EM.-\IL ADDRESS:-

SUllMITTAL DATE: -

STATEMENT or ACTIVITIES 

PROGRA~I REVENUES 

OPERATING GRANTS CAPITAL GRANTS 
EXPENSES CHARGES FOR SERVICES AND CONTRIBUTIONS AND CONTRIBUTIONS NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE 

1,653,058.00 1,971,9 15.00 0.00 0 00 $3 18,857.00 

GENERAL REVENUES 

PAYMENTS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

OTIIER 

ADDITIONS TO PERMANENT ENDOWMENTS 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 

NET POSITION - RESTATEMENT 

NET POSITION - ENDING 

000 

0.00 

0.00 

S3l 8,857.00 

$(3,886,447.00) 

0.00 

S(3,567,S90.00) 
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ANNUAL FISCAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 2021 

.o\G[NCY: 20-11-16-Lou,siana S1a1c Boa1d of Cosmc1ology 

PREPARED BY: -

P IIONE NUMBER: -

EMA IL AODRESS:-

S UBMITTAL DATE: --

Arcounl T ype 
Amounts due from Primary 
Gove rnme111 

Accou111 Type 
Amounls doe 10 Primary 
Gove rnrntnl 

lnre rcompany {Fu11J) 

l11 1ercompany (Fund) 
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DUES AND TRANSFERS 

Amount 

Total S0.00 

A m ount 

Tola l S0.00 



ANNUAL FISCAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 2021 

,, G ENCY: 20- 11-16 - Louisiana Sia« Boa,d of Cosmc1ology 

PREPARED BY: --

PHONE NUMBER: -

HI.-\IL ADDRESS: -

S UBMITTAL D,\ TE: •• 

SCH £DUL£ OF BONDS PA YA BLE 

Original Principa l 
Series Issue Date or Issue Issue Amount Outs tanding PF\' Issue (Redeemed) 

0 00 000 0 00 

Tota ls S0.00 S0.00 

Series - Unamorrized Premiums: 

Principa l 
Series Issue Date of Issue Ourstanding PFY Issue (Redermetl) 

0.00 0.00 

Totals $0.00 S0.00 

Series - Unamo,·tiud Discounts: 

Principal 
Series Issue Dare of Issue Outsta ntling PFY Issue (Redeemed) 

0.00 0.00 

Totals $0.00 $0.00 
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Principa l lnltrCSI 
Outs randing CFY Ourstanding C FY 

$ 0.00 0 00 

SO.OD S0.00 

Principal 
Outs iandin:: CFY 

$ 0.00 

$0.00 

Principa l 
Outs landing CFY 

$ 0.00 

SO.DO 



A NNUAL FISCA L R E PORT (AFR) 
FO R 2021 

AGENCY: 20-11-16 • I ou;siana Smc Board of Cosmc1olngy 

PR EPA RED BY:·· 

PIIONE NUMBER: -

EMA ILA DORESS:-

S UBI\IITTA L DATE:·· 

SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE ;\MORTI ZAT ION 

Fisca l Vrar Ending: P rincipa l I nit res , 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

2030 

203 1 

2032 

2033 

2034 

2035 

2036 

2037 

2038 

2039 

2040 

204 1 

2042 

2043 

2044 

2045 

2046 

2047 

2048 

2049 

2050 

2051 

2052 

2053 

2054 

2055 

2056 

P1(m1ums :ind D1scoun1s 

Toral 

000 

000 

000 

0.00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

0 .00 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

000 

000 

000 

0 00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

0 00 

0 00 

000 

000 

000 

000 

000 

S0.00 

SO.OU 

0 00 

000 

000 

000 

0 .00 

0 .00 

0.00 

0.00 

000 

000 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

000 

0.00 

0.00 

000 

000 

000 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

000 

000 

0 00 

000 

0 00 

000 

0 00 

000 

000 

0.00 
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N UAL Fl C,\L R EPORT (1\ FR) 
FOR 202 1 

PREPARED DV: -

PHONE NUMBER: -

EI\IAIL AOORESS:­

SU 81\ IITTAL DATE:·· 

O1htr Poscrmploymcnl Dtntfi1s (OPEil) 

If your agency has acuve or rec.red employees who arc members of the Ollicc of Group BcnclilS (0GB) llcahh Plan, please 
provide the following mformauon (Note 0GB has a 6/30/2020 measurement date for theor OPEB valuauon) 

Benefit payments made subsequent to 1hc measurement dace of1hc 0GB Actuanal Valuat,oo Repon unul the 
employer's fiscal year end (Benefit paymenlS arc defined as 1hc employer paymenlS for reurees· health and li fe 
insurance premiums) For agencies wnh a 6/30 year end 1h1s covers the currenl fiscal year being reponcd For 
calendar year end agencies, 11 covers the period 7/ I 10 12/31 for the current year being reponed 

Covered Employee Payroll for the PRIOR fiscal year (no1 including rela1ed bcnefilS) 

For c• lcnJ ar yur-cnll • gcnciu only: Benefit payments or employer payments for reurecs' heahh and life 
insurance premiums made for the next year's valuauon reporung period (7/ I /2020 • 6/30/202 1) This information 
will be provided 10 1hc actua1y for 1he valuauon rcpon early next year 

67.07700 

626,102 00 

000 

For agencies thai have employees thac pan1c1pa1e m 1he LSll lftnllh Plan, provide the following mforma11on- (Note The LSU 
Hcallh Plan has a mcasuremenl dale of 6/30/2021 for their OPEB valua1ion report.) 

Covered Employee Payroll for the CURRENT fiscal year (not including rela1ed bcnefilS) 0.00 
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ANNUAL FISCAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 2021 

;\GE 'CV: 20• I I • I 6 - Louisiana S1a1~ Boa1·d of Cosmccolog~ 

PREPARED BY:·· 

PHONE NUMBER: -

EMAIL A0D1!£SS: -

SU BM ITTAL IMTE: ·• 

Account Narnt/Description 

FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION RESTATEMENT 

Tolal 

Rts iattmtnt 
Amounl 

$0.00 
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A t UAL Fl CAL REPORT (AFR) 
FOR 202 1 

GENCV: 20-11-16 • Louosoana S101c 8o:ud ol C~s1nc1otog> 

PREPARED DV: -

PIIONE NUMBER: -

EM.~11.A00RESS:-

SU0 ~IITTAI. DATE: ·· 

SllBM ISSIO 

Before subm111111g, ensure 1ha1 all data (statements, notes, schedules) have been entered for the agency 

Once subm111cd no changes can be made to any of the agency data for the specified year 
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By chckong 'Subm11' below you cc111fy that the financ ial statements herewith given present fa orly the financial pos111on and the results of opcra11ons for the year ended 1n 
accordance w,th policies and prac11ccs established by the D1v1s,on of Admimstrauon or 1n accordance with Generally Accepted Account mg Prrnc1ples as prescribed by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

Remrnder You must send Louisiana Lcg1slot1ve Auditors an electronrc copy of the AFR report ma pdf, tiff, or some other electronic formal to the following e-mail address· 
LLAF1leroom@Ua la go" 
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T W R U 

CPAs & Financ,a/ Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CO TROL 
OY ER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON AN A UDIT Or- r-INANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board Members of the 
Louisiana Srate Board of Cosmetology 
A Discrete Compone111 Unit 
of the State of Louisiana 
1 1622 Sunbelt Court 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 

We have audited, in accordance w ith the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicab le to fi nanc ial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard~ issued by the Comptroller 
Genera l of1he Uni led States, the financial statements o f 1he business-type activities of the Louisiana State Board of 
Cosmetology (Board), a component unit of the State of Louisiana, as o f and for the year ended June 30, 202 1, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board 's basic financial statements. and 
have issued our report 1hereon dated December 17, 202 1. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board's internal control over 
financial reporting ( internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose o f expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Board 's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Board 's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control ex ists when the design or operation o f a control does not allow manageme111 or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their as igned functions, to prevent. or detect and correct. 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that 1here is a reasonable possibi li ty that a material misstatement o f the enti ty's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency. or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet impor1ant enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose descr ibed in 1he fi rsl paragraph of this section and 
was 1101 designed to identify all deficiencies in internal comrol that might be nrnterial weaknesses or, ~ignificant 
deficiencies. Given lhese lim itations, during our aud it we did not iden1ify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 1ha1 have not been iden1ified. 

Compliance and O the r Matters 

As part o f obtaining reasonable as urance aboul whether the Board's financ ial statements are free from ma1erial 
m iss1atemen1, we performed tests of its compliance w ith certain prov isions o r laws. regulations, contract . and gram 
agreements, noncompliance wi1h which could have a direct and material effect on the determination or linancra l 
s1a1emen1 amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance wi th those provisions was not an objecti ve of 
our audit. and accord ingly. we do nol express such an opin ion. The results o f our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matter that are required 10 be reported under Govem111e11t Auditing Standards. 

527 East Airport Ave . Bilton Rouge. LA 70806 225.926 1050 I www.lwru com 



Page 56 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of 1his report is solely 10 describe 1he scope of our tesling of internal control and compl iance and 1he 
results of that tes1ing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the enti1y 's internal control or on 
compliance. Th is report is an integra l part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standard\· 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 1his communication is nol sui1able for any 
other purpose. 

CPAs & Financial Advisors 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
December 17, 2021 

CPAs & F,nanc,al Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UN IT OF TIIE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

June 30, 2021 

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' REPORTS 

Financial Statements: 
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Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited 
were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified Opinion 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakncss(cs) identified 

Significant Deficiency(ies) identified 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted 

No 

No 

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

None reported. 

FINDINGS RELATED TO LOUISIANA AUDJT LAW 

None reported. 

CPAs & r,nanc,al Advisors 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY 
A DISCRETE COMPONENT UN IT OF THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF PRJOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RES PONSE 

June 30, 2021 
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FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

None repo11ed. 

FINDINGS RELATED TO LOUISIANA AUDIT LAW 

2020-001 Late Submission of Audit Report 

Criteria: In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13 and 24 :5 I 4 local auditee reports are due to 
the Lou isiana Legislat ive Auditor (LLA) no later than six months after the local auditee's fiscal year end 

Condition: Louisiana Board of Cosmetology did not submit the reviewed financia l statements timely in 
accordance with the state law. 

Cause: The audit process was postponed due to the independent CPA firm having mult iple cases ofCovid 
19 in their staff and a ransomware computer auack in January 2021. This caused disrupt ion in their entire 
audit schedule delaying the completion and review of all audits. 

Effect: Financial reports were not submitted timely. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the organization ask the CPA finn to start the audit process earlier 
to ensure the fin ancials are submitted timely in the future. 

Managements' Response: The organization agrees with the finding and condition and will start the 
reporting process earlier in furure period so reviewed statements will be filed in a timely manner. 

,., 
T W R lJ 

CPAs & Ftnanc,al Advisors 


